

#### **Minutes**

At a meeting of the Full Council held at Council Chamber, County Hall, Preston, on Thursday, 12th October, 2023

#### Present:

County Councillor Alan Cullens BEM (Chairman)

## **County Councillors**

J Berry A Hindle M Salter P Britcliffe S Holgate A Schofield M Brown A Hosker S Serridge P Buckley D Howarth J Shedwick J Burrows T Hurn J R Singleton JP A Cheetham M Iqbal MBE S Smith S Clarke S Jones K Snape A Clempson H Khan R Swarbrick M Clifford N Khan M Tomlinson L Collinge E Lewis C Towneley J Couperthwaite S Malik S Turner L Cox J Mein A Vincent M Dad BEM JP G Mirfin D Westley F De Molfetta S C Morris Whittaker G Dowding Y Motala S Whittam C Edwards D O'Toole P Williamson J Fillis J Oakes R Woollam	P Britcliffe M Brown P Buckley J Burrows A Cheetham S Clarke A Clempson M Clifford L Collinge J Couperthwaite L Cox M Dad BEM JP F De Molfetta G Dowding C Edwards J Fillis
A Gardiner J Parr B Yates	A Gardiner

## 1. Apologies and Announcements

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors Andrea Kay, Matthew Maxwell-Scott and Ash Sutcliffe.



County Councillor Lian Pate joined the meeting virtually.

#### Announcements

Chorley Rural West By-Election – Report of the Returning Officer

The Chief Executive, as the Returning Officer for the election of County Councillors, reported that on Thursday 14 September 2023 a by-election was held for the Chorley Rural West Electoral Division following the death of former County Councillor Keith Iddon, and that County Councillor Alan Whittaker of the Labour Party was duly elected.

#### Deaths

The Chairman reported the recent deaths of former County Councillor Margaret Livesey, who sadly passed away on 30 September 2023 and former County Councillor Howard Eccles, who sadly passed away on 28 July 2023.

The Council observed a one-minute silence.

#### Devolution

At the invitation of the Chairman, County Councillor Phillippa Williamson, Leader of the Council, updated Full Council on recent developments on the devolution deal for Lancashire.

## 2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

None declared.

## 3. Question Time

County Councillors Mark Clifford, Kim Snape, Loraine Cox, Scott Smith and Charles Edwards asked their questions as follows:

No.	Question From	Subject	For Answer By
1	County Councillor Mark Clifford	Recognition for Reflections staff	Cabinet Member for Resources, HR and Property
2	County Councillor Kim Snape	20mph speed limits	Leader / Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport
3	County Councillor Loraine Cox	Nature recovery in Lancashire	Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change
4	County Councillor Scott Smith	Proposed Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone	Cabinet Member for Economic



		impact	Development and Growth
5	County Councillor Charles Edwards	Support and information on breastfeeding for new mothers	Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing

County Councillor Alan Vincent, Cabinet Member for Resources, HR and Property; County Councillor Phillippa Williamson, Leader of the Council, and County Councillor Rupert Swarbrick, Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport; County Councillor Shaun Turner, Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change; County Councillor Aidy Riggott, Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Growth; and County Councillor Michael Green, Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing replied.

# 4. Confirmation of the Minutes from the Ordinary Meeting held on 13 July 2023 and the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 15 September 2023

**Resolved:** that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 13 July 2023 and the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 15 September 2023 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

## 5. Appointment of Independent Persons

County Councillor Alan Vincent moved a report proposing the appointment of two new independent persons to fulfil the role required by the Localism Act 2011 in relation to allegations of members' misconduct.

**Resolved:** that the appointment of Ms J England and Ms L Keane to fulfil the role of independent person as required by the Localism Act 2011, for a two-year term with effect from 12 October 2023, is approved.

#### 6. Lancashire County Council Timetable of Meetings 2024/25

County Councillor Phillippa Williamson moved a report asking Full Council to approve the timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings for the period 1 June 2024 to 31 May 2025.

**Resolved:** that the timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings for the period 1 June 2024 to 31 May 2025 inclusive, as set out at Appendix A, is approved.

# 7. Lancashire County Pension Fund Annual Report Year Ending 31 March 2023 & Investment Pooling Consultation

County Councillor Eddie Pope moved a report from the Pension Fund Committee updating Full Council on performance and state of the Lancashire County Pension Fund, and investment activities during the preceding year.



**Resolved:** that Full Council notes the performance and state of the Lancashire County Pension Fund and investment activities for the year ended 31 March 2023 as set out in the report

# 8. Appointment of New Employer Representative on the Lancashire Local Pension Board

County Councillor Eddie Pope moved a report requesting the appointment of a new employer representative on the Lancashire Local Pension Board.

**Resolved:** that the appointment of Mr Mark Davies as a new employer representative on the Lancashire Local Pension Board as set out in the report is agreed, and that he be bound by the county council's Code of Conduct with immediate effect

## 9. Urgent Business

There was no urgent business to be considered.

## 10. Report of the Cabinet (Part B)

County Councillor Phillippa Williamson moved the report of the Cabinet from its meetings on 6 July 2023 and 7 September 2023, along with details of an urgent key decision taken since the last meeting of Full Council, in accordance with Standing Order C22.

**Resolved:** that the report of the Cabinet, now presented, be noted

#### 11(a) The Urgency Committee

County Councillor Phillippa Williamson moved the report of the Urgency Committee setting our details of the decision taken by either the Director of Law and Governance (the Monitoring Officer) or the Executive Director of Resources under the county council's urgent business procedure on behalf of the Urgency Committee.

Resolved: that the report of the Urgency Committee, now presented, be noted

## 11(b) The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee

County Councillor Alan Schofield moved the report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee from its meeting held on 24 July 2023.

**Resolved:** that the report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee, now presented, be noted

## 11(c) The Employment Committee

County Councillor Phillippa Williamson moved the report of the Employment Committee from its meeting held on 11 July 2023.

**Resolved:** that the report of the Employment Committee, now presented, be noted.

## 11(d) The Pension Fund Committee



County Councillor Eddie Pope moved the report of the Pension Fund Committee from its recent meeting on 15 September 2023.

Resolved: that the report of the Pension Fund Committee, now presented, be noted

### 11(e) The Overview and Scrutiny Committees

County Councillor David Westley moved the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees from their meetings as follows:

- Scrutiny Management Board (25 July 2023)
- Children, Families and Skills (20 September 2023)
- Environment, Economic Growth and Transport (29 June and 21 September 2023)
- Health and Adult Services (12 July and 13 September 2023)

**Resolved:** that the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, now presented, be noted

## 11(f) The Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board

County Councillor Michael Green moved the report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board from its recent meetings on 18 July and 5 September 2023.

**Resolved:** that the report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board, now presented, be noted

### 11. Report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority

County Councillor David O'Toole moved the report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority from its meetings on 26 June and 18 September 2023.

**Resolved:** that the report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority, now presented, is noted

## 12. To consider Notices of Motion Submitted under Standing Order B36

1. It was moved by County Councillor Jean Parr and seconded by County Councillor Samara Barnes that:

This council notes:

- Councillors represent their community and it is important that they reflect the
  diversity within their communities, particularly those with protected
  characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
  partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual
  orientation).
- The work of the Cooperative Party in developing a Declaration for councils aimed at increasing diversity in local government.
- The council does not fully represent the gender balance of the county nor its ethnic diversity. There is a wide divergence of representation between the parties on the council.



 This council already has a parental leave policy and provides access to counselling and wellbeing.

#### This council believes:

Diversity in representation makes for good decision making.

#### This council resolves:

 To adopt The Co-operative Party's Diverse Councils Declaration to increase diversity in our local government:

## The Co-operative Party's Diverse Councils Declaration

This Council commits to being a Diverse Council. We agree to:

- 1. Provide a clear public commitment to improving diversity in democracy.
- 2. Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all, promoting the highest standards of behaviour and conduct.
- 3. Set out a local Diverse Council Action Plan ahead of the next local elections. Including:
  - Appoint Diversity Ambassadors for each political group on the council to work with each other and local party associations to encourage recruitment of candidates from under-represented groups.
  - Encourage and enable people from under-represented groups to stand for office through the provision of activities such as mentoring and shadowing programmes and information and learning events for people interested in standing as official candidates.
  - Proactive engagement and involvement with local community groups and partner organisations supporting and representing under-represented groups.
  - Ensure that all members and candidates complete a candidates' and councillors' survey distributed at election time.
  - Set ambitious targets for candidates from under-represented groups at the next local elections.
- 4. Work towards the standards for member support and development as set out in the LGA Councillor Development Charter and/or Charter Plus.
- 5. Demonstrate a commitment to a duty of care for councillors by:
  - Continuing to provide access to counselling services for all councillors having regard for the safety and wellbeing of councillors whenever they are performing their role as councillors.
  - Taking a zero-tolerance approach to bullying and harassment of members including through social networks.
- 6. Provide flexibility in council business by:
  - Regularly reviewing and staggering meeting times.
  - Encouraging and supporting remote attendance at meetings wherever feasible.
  - Agreeing recess periods to support councillors with caring or work commitments.
- 7. Ensure that all members take up the allowances to which they are entitled, particularly any reimbursement for costs of care, so that all members receive fair



remuneration for their work and that the role of member is not limited to those who can afford it.

8. Ensure that councillors from under-represented groups are represented whenever possible in high profile, high influence roles.

Following a period of debate, on being put to the vote, the motion was LOST.

2. It was moved by County Councillor Nikki Hennessey and seconded by County Councillor Julie Gibson that:

The Charter for Families Bereaved through Public Tragedy was written by the former Bishop of Liverpool to ensure the suffering endured by families bereaved following the 1989 Hillsborough disaster is not repeated after future disastrous events.

Liverpool City is one of our great neighbours, we have had many families directly and indirectly affected by the Hillsborough Tragedy itself. Lancashire County Council should stand shoulder to shoulder with all bereaved families who have suffered loss and we should ensure that Lancashire County Council does not make the same mistakes in the aftermath of any future disasters.

Lancashire County Council therefore resolves to:

## **Adopt The Charter for Families Bereaved Through Public Tragedy**

In adopting this charter, Lancashire County Council commits to ensuring that Lancashire County Council learns the lessons of the Hillsborough disaster and its aftermath, so that the perspective of the bereaved families is not lost.

We commit to Lancashire County Council becoming an organisation which strives to:

- 1. In the event of a public tragedy, activate its emergency plan and deploy its resources to rescue victims, to support the bereaved and to protect the vulnerable.
- 2. Place the public interest above our own reputation.
- 3. Approach forms of public scrutiny including public inquiries and inquests with candour, in an open, honest and transparent way, making full disclosure of relevant documents, material and facts. Our objective is to assist the search for the truth. We accept that we should learn from the findings of external scrutiny and from past mistakes.
- 4. Avoid seeking to defend the indefensible or to dismiss or disparage those who may have suffered where we have fallen short.
- 5. Ensure all members of staff treat members of the public and each other with mutual respect and with courtesy. Where we fall short, we should apologise straightforwardly and genuinely.
- 6. Recognise that we are accountable and open to challenge. We will ensure that processes are in place to allow the public to hold us to account for the work we do and for the way in which we do it. We do not knowingly mislead the public or the media.



The following friendly amendment was proposed by County Councillor Peter Buckley:

The Charter for Families Bereaved through Public Tragedy was written by the former Bishop of Liverpool to ensure the suffering endured by families bereaved following the 1989 Hillsborough disaster is not repeated after future disastrous events.

Liverpool City is one of our great neighbours, we have had many families directly and indirectly affected by the Hillsborough Tragedy itself. Lancashire County Council should stand shoulder to shoulder with all bereaved families who have suffered loss and we should ensure that Lancashire County Council does not make the same mistakes in the aftermath of any future disasters.

Lancashire County Council notes the text of the Charter which commits an organisation to strive to:

- 1. In the event of a public tragedy, activate its emergency plan and deploy its resources to rescue victims, to support the bereaved and to protect the vulnerable.
- 2. Place the public interest above our own reputation.
- 3. Approach forms of public scrutiny including public inquiries and inquests with candour, in an open, honest and transparent way, making full disclosure of relevant documents, material and facts. Our objective is to assist the search for the truth. We accept that we should learn from the findings of external scrutiny and from past mistakes.
- 4. Avoid seeking to defend the indefensible or to dismiss or disparage those who may have suffered where we have fallen short.
- 5. Ensure all members of staff treat members of the public and each other with mutual respect and with courtesy. Where we fall short, we should apologise straightforwardly and genuinely.
- 6. Recognise that we are accountable and open to challenge. We will ensure that processes are in place to allow the public to hold us to account for the work we do and for the way in which we do it. We do not knowingly mislead the public or the media.

It is important that lessons are learnt following tragedies such as the Hillsborough Disaster and more recently the Manchester Arena Terror Attack, and that appropriate policies and procedures are constantly reviewed to ensure these principles are upheld.

This Council therefore resolves to instruct the Chief Executive and Head of Health, Safety and Resilience to bring to Cabinet proposals for including the principles of the Charter, and expanding upon them, in the council's "Emergency, Planning, Resilience and Response Framework", adopting best practice from partners including the Lancashire Resilience Forum and other local authorities.

The friendly Amendment was accepted by County Councillor Nikki Hennessey and became the substantive Motion. The substantive Motion, as amended by County



Councillor Buckley's friendly Amendment, was then put to the vote and was CARRIED and it was therefore:

#### Resolved: that:

The Charter for Families Bereaved through Public Tragedy was written by the former Bishop of Liverpool to ensure the suffering endured by families bereaved following the 1989 Hillsborough disaster is not repeated after future disastrous events.

Liverpool City is one of our great neighbours, we have had many families directly and indirectly affected by the Hillsborough Tragedy itself. Lancashire County Council should stand shoulder to shoulder with all bereaved families who have suffered loss and we should ensure that Lancashire County Council does not make the same mistakes in the aftermath of any future disasters.

Lancashire County Council notes the text of the Charter which commits an organisation to strive to:

- 1. In the event of a public tragedy, activate its emergency plan and deploy its resources to rescue victims, to support the bereaved and to protect the vulnerable.
- 2. Place the public interest above our own reputation.
- 3. Approach forms of public scrutiny including public inquiries and inquests with candour, in an open, honest and transparent way, making full disclosure of relevant documents, material and facts. Our objective is to assist the search for the truth. We accept that we should learn from the findings of external scrutiny and from past mistakes.
- 4. Avoid seeking to defend the indefensible or to dismiss or disparage those who may have suffered where we have fallen short.
- 5. Ensure all members of staff treat members of the public and each other with mutual respect and with courtesy. Where we fall short, we should apologise straightforwardly and genuinely.
- 6. Recognise that we are accountable and open to challenge. We will ensure that processes are in place to allow the public to hold us to account for the work we do and for the way in which we do it. We do not knowingly mislead the public or the media.

It is important that lessons are learnt following tragedies such as the Hillsborough Disaster and more recently the Manchester Arena Terror Attack, and that appropriate policies and procedures are constantly reviewed to ensure these principles are upheld.

This Council therefore resolves to instruct the Chief Executive and Head of Health, Safety and Resilience to bring to Cabinet proposals for including the principles of the Charter, and expanding upon them, in the council's "Emergency, Planning, Resilience and Response Framework", adopting best practice from partners including the Lancashire Resilience Forum and other local authorities.



3. It was moved by County Councillor Azhar Ali and seconded by County Councillor Mohammed Iqbal that:

Over the last 12 months there have been a number of deaths resulting from falls from bridges on the M65 from junction 10 to junction 14 which are owned and managed by Lancashire County Council.

Lancashire County Council has a commitment to a Lancashire anti suicide strategy and this Council therefore resolves to:

- (i) Carry out urgent surveys of all the motorway bridges from junction 10 to junction 14 of the M65.
- (ii) Take preventative measures including increasing the height of the railings like other motorway bridges to reduce significantly the risk of falls and critical accidents.

The following friendly amendment was proposed by County Councillor Rupert Swarbrick and seconded by County Councillor Scott Smith:

Lancashire County Council has a commitment to a Lancashire anti suicide strategy and this Council therefore resolves to:

- (i) Carry out urgent surveys of all the motorway bridges from junction 10 to junction 14 of the M65.
- (ii) Take all reasonable preventative measures on all motorway bridges owned by LCC to reduce significantly the risk of falls and critical accidents.
- (iii) Ask the Chief Executive to write to National Highways to take similar steps on their estate.

The friendly Amendment was accepted by County Councillor Ali and became the substantive Motion. The substantive Motion, as amended by County Councillor Swarbrick's friendly Amendment, was then put to the vote and was CARRIED and it was therefore:

#### Resolved: that:

Lancashire County Council has a commitment to a Lancashire anti suicide strategy and this Council therefore resolves to:

- (i) Carry out urgent surveys of all the motorway bridges from junction 10 to junction 14 of the M65.
- (ii) Take all reasonable preventative measures on all motorway bridges owned by LCC to reduce significantly the risk of falls and critical accidents.
- (iii) Ask the Chief Executive to write to National Highways to take similar steps on their estate.
  - 4. It was moved by County Councillor Lizzi Collinge and seconded by County Councillor Lorraine Beavers that:



Lancashire County Council recognises the good work of community groups last winter in keeping our residents warm and well during the ongoing cost of living crisis. Whilst the council deplores that this is necessary, we recognise our responsibility to our residents to contribute to the humanitarian response.

This council resolves to establish a Warm and Welcome Places Grants Scheme to support community organisations to provide Warm and Welcome spaces across the county, with detailed criteria to be approved by Cabinet, to include all costs including costs of utilities, equipment, food and drink, activities and volunteer costs, to be funded from the Public Health Grant.

Grants would be available of up to £2,000 for a basic Warm and Welcome Space (including hot drinks), and £4,000 for enhanced Warm and Welcome Spaces (including hot meals and social activities).

Further, this council resolves to again include our libraries in the humanitarian response and reproduce the Warm and Welcome offer from Lancashire Libraries.

The following amendment was proposed by County Councillor Michael Green and seconded by County Councillor Sue Whittam:

Lancashire County Council recognises the good work of our Lancashire Libraries and community groups last winter in helping to keep our residents warm and well.

This Council further recognises the success of the support we put in place last winter, including the Lancashire Warm Spaces Grant Scheme, our Lancashire Warm Spaces online directory and supportive resources and the dedicated cost of living support, activities and warm refreshments offered across our 64 Lancashire Libraries.

This Council welcomes the new Cost of Living Fund established by the Government to fund work by organisations supporting low-income households.

To complement this new fund, this council resolves to establish a Warm and Welcome Places Grants Scheme for 2023/24 to support community organisations to provide Warm and Welcome spaces across the county in the winter period, with detailed criteria to be approved by Cabinet.

Further, this council resolves continue to promote a Warm and Welcome offer from our Lancashire Libraries and to continue to promote our Lancashire Warm Spaces online directory and supportive resources.

The Amendment was accepted by County Councillor Lizzi Collinge and became the substantive Motion.



Following a period of debate, the substantive Motion, as amended by County Councillor Green's Amendment, was then put to the vote and was CARRIED. It was therefore:

#### Resolved: that:

Lancashire County Council recognises the good work of our Lancashire Libraries and community groups last winter in helping to keep our residents warm and well.

This Council further recognises the success of the support we put in place last winter, including the Lancashire Warm Spaces Grant Scheme, our Lancashire Warm Spaces online directory and supportive resources and the dedicated cost of living support, activities and warm refreshments offered across our 64 Lancashire Libraries.

This Council welcomes the new Cost of Living Fund established by the Government to fund work by organisations supporting low-income households.

To complement this new fund, this council resolves to establish a Warm and Welcome Places Grants Scheme for 2023/24 to support community organisations to provide Warm and Welcome spaces across the county in the winter period, with detailed criteria to be approved by Cabinet.

Further, this council resolves continue to promote a Warm and Welcome offer from our Lancashire Libraries and to continue to promote our Lancashire Warm Spaces online directory and supportive resources.

Angie Ridgwell Chief Executive

County Hall Preston

